
 

 

 
 

 

 
  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

New Horizons Charter School Society   



NEW HORIZONS CHARTER SCHOOL SOCIETY 

AGENDA 
Type of Meeting: Board                             Date: December 14, 2016  Page:1 of 2 
“TOWARDS NEW HORIZONS”:            Is it in the best interest of our students?                  Does it support excellence? 
                  

 

Agendas for the School Year 2016-2017 

NEW HORIZONS CHARTER SCHOOL SOCIETY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

DECEMBER 14, 2016 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Call to Order Jill Weiss 7:00 pm 
 

2. Adoption of Agenda Jill Weiss 7:01 pm 
 

3. Disclosure of Conflict of Interest Jill Weiss 7:03 pm 
 

4. Approval of Minutes Jill Weiss 7:04 pm 
4.1 November 23, 2016 – attachment 

 
5. Administration Reports  7:08 pm 

5.1 Principal’s Report Ted Zarowny 
5.2 Superintendent’s Report – attachment Don Falk 

 
6. Board Reports Jill Weiss 7:28 pm  

6.1 Board Chair’s Report 
6.2 Committee Reports 

 
7. The Association of Alberta Public Charter Schools  7:38 pm 

7.1 Upcoming Meetings – attachment Don Falk 
 

8. New Business  7:43 pm 
8.1 Vacancy on Board of Directors – attachment  Jill Weiss  
8.2 Quarterly Financial Report – attachment  Fred de Kleine 
8.3 Report on Enrolment – attachment  Don Falk   

  
9. Board Work Plan Jill Weiss 8:10 pm 

9.1 Board Work Plan 2016-17 – attachment  
 

10. Receipt of Reports Jill Weiss 8:15 pm 
 

11. Correspondence Sent  8:20 pm 
11.1 Letter (2016-11-25) to Minister Eggen re Jill Weiss 

Enrolment Cap 
   

12. Correspondence Received  Jill Weiss 8:25 pm  
  

13. In Camera Jill Weiss 8:25 pm 

Page 1 of 33



NEW HORIZONS CHARTER SCHOOL SOCIETY 

AGENDA 
Type of Meeting: Board                             Date: December 14, 2016  Page:2 of 2 
“TOWARDS NEW HORIZONS”:            Is it in the best interest of our students?                  Does it support excellence? 
                  

 

Agendas for the School Year 2016-2017 

 
14. Adjournment Jill Weiss 9:00 pm 

 
Next Board Meeting – Wednesday, January 11, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. 

Board Orientation at 6:30 p.m. 

Page 2 of 33



NEW HORIZONS CHARTER SCHOOL SOCIETY 

MINUTES 

Type of Meeting: Board Date: November 23, 2016 Initials: Chair              

Approved: DRAFT Recorded By: Cheri Unterschultz  Secretary               

____________________________________________________________________________ 

DRAFT     Page 1 

 

  

November 23, 2016, 7:00 PM 

 

Board Members Present at Call to Order:   

 

Jill Weiss 
CHAIR 

William Watson 
DIRECTOR 

Trevor Panas 
DIRECTOR 

Michelle Macdonald 
DIRECTOR 

  

  

Administration Present: 

Don Falk 
SUPERINTENDENT 

Ted Zarowny 
PRINCIPAL 

Fred de Kleine 
SECRETARY-TREASURER 

Cheri Unterschultz 
RECORDING SECRETARY 

  

 

Guests Present: 

Chris Kaye 
VLEEMING VLEEMING O’NEIL LLP 

      

  
 

   

 

1. Call to Order 

Director Weiss called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm. 

 

2. Adoption of Agenda 

 

Motion 2016-11-23-01 Motion to adopt agenda for the Board Meeting 

November 23, 2016, as distributed. 

 

Moved: Director Macdonald, Seconded: Director 
Panas, Carried 

 

3. Disclosure of Conflict of Interest: None 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 33



NEW HORIZONS CHARTER SCHOOL SOCIETY 

MINUTES 

Type of Meeting: Board Date: November 23, 2016 Initials: Chair              

Approved: DRAFT Recorded By: Cheri Unterschultz  Secretary               

____________________________________________________________________________ 

DRAFT     Page 2 

 

 

4. Approval of Minutes 

 

4.1 Minutes from November 9, 2016. 

 

Motion 2016-11-23-02 Motion to approve November 9, 2016 Board Meeting 
Minutes as distributed. 
 
Moved: Director Watson, Seconded: Director 
Macdonald, Carried 

             

Inna Mackay joined the meeting at 7:08pm. 

 

5. New Business 

 

5.1. Audited Financial Statements 

Chris Kaye of Vleeming Vleeming O’Neill LLP provided comment on the draft 

Audited Financial Statements for the period ended August 31, 2016, as 

distributed at the meeting. He also responded to questions from directors. 

 

Motion 2016-11-23-03 Motion to accept and approve the Audited Financial 
Statements in all material respects as at and for the 
year ended August 31, 2016 as prepared by Vleeming 
Vleeming O’Neal LLP.  
 
Moved: Director Mackay, Seconded: Director 
Macdonald, Carried 

 

Motion 2016-11-23-04 Motion to approve the transfers of funds as outlined in 
the Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus for 
the year ended August 31, 2016. 
 
Moved: Director Mackay, Seconded: Director Panas, 
Carried 

 

 Chris Kaye left the meeting at 8:01 pm. 

 

5.2. Annual Education Results Report 2015 - 16 

Principal Zarowny spoke to the Annual Education Results Report 2015 - 2016, as 

attached to the agenda for the meeting.   

 

Page 4 of 33



NEW HORIZONS CHARTER SCHOOL SOCIETY 

MINUTES 

Type of Meeting: Board Date: November 23, 2016 Initials: Chair              

Approved: DRAFT Recorded By: Cheri Unterschultz  Secretary               

____________________________________________________________________________ 

DRAFT     Page 3 

 

 

5.3. Three-Year Education Plan 2016/17 – 2018/19 

Principal Zarowny spoke to the Three-Year Education Plan 2016/17 – 2018/19, 

as attached to the agenda for the meeting.   

 

Motion 2016-11-23-05 Motion to adopt the Annual Education Results Report 
2015-2016 and the Three-Year Education Plan 
2016/17 - 2018/19 as presented by Principal Zarowny. 
 
Moved: Director Panas, Seconded: Director Mackay, 
Carried 

 

 5.4      Fall Budget Update 2016-17 

Secretary-Treasurer de Kleine spoke to the draft updated 2016-17 budget as 

attached to the agenda for the meeting.   

 

Motion 2016-11-23-06 Motion to adopt the updated 2016-17 budget as 
outlined by Fred de Kleine. 
 
Moved: Director Macdonald, Seconded: Director 
Watson, Carried 

 

5.5      Stakeholder Forum 

Superintendent Falk spoke to the Stakeholder Forum, as per the memo attached 

to the agenda for the meeting. Directors offered suggestions with respect to the 

focus of and format for the Stakeholder Forum. 

 

5.6  Letter to Education Minister re Enrolment Cap 

Superintendent Falk presented a draft letter to the Minister of Education as 

attached to the agenda for the meeting.  

    

Motion 2016-11-23-07 Motion to approve and send the letter to the Minister of 
Education as presented. 
 
Moved: Director Macdonald, Seconded: Director 
Panas, Carried 

 

6.  Administration Reports 

 

6.1 Principal’s Report 

Page 5 of 33



NEW HORIZONS CHARTER SCHOOL SOCIETY 

MINUTES 

Type of Meeting: Board Date: November 23, 2016 Initials: Chair              

Approved: DRAFT Recorded By: Cheri Unterschultz  Secretary               

____________________________________________________________________________ 

DRAFT     Page 4 

 

 

Principal Zarowny spoke to his written report as attached to the agenda for the 

meeting.  

 

6.2  Superintendent’s Report 

Superintendent Falk spoke to his written report as attached to the agenda for the 

meeting.  

 

7.  Board Reports 

 

7.1 Board Chair Report 

No report 

 

7.2  Committee Reports 

  No reports 

 

8.  Board Work Plan 

The Board reviewed the Board Work Plan 2016-17, as attached to the agenda for the 

meeting. 

 

9. Receipt of Reports 

 

Motion 2016-11-23-08 Motion to receive reports as presented to the Board. 

 

Moved: Director Watson, Seconded: Director Mackay, 
Carried 

 

9. Correspondence Sent 

 None 

 

10.  Correspondence Received 

None 

 

11. Motion to Move into Camera: 

 

Motion 2016-11-23-09 Motion to move into camera at 9:48 pm.  

 

Moved: Director Macdonald, Seconded: Director 

Panas, Carried 

Page 6 of 33



NEW HORIZONS CHARTER SCHOOL SOCIETY 

MINUTES 

Type of Meeting: Board Date: November 23, 2016 Initials: Chair              

Approved: DRAFT Recorded By: Cheri Unterschultz  Secretary               

____________________________________________________________________________ 

DRAFT     Page 5 

 

 

 Director Mackay left the meeting at 10:15 pm.  

 

12.  Motion to Move Out of Camera: 

 

Motion 2016-11-23-10 Motion to move out of camera at 10:33 pm.  

 

Moved: Director Panas, Seconded: Director 

Macdonald, Carried 

 

13.  Adjournment 

 

Chair Weiss adjourned the meeting at 10:34 pm. 

 

 

 

 

Next Board Meeting:  Annual General Meeting November 30, 2016 at 7:00 pm. 

Regular Board Meeting December 14, 2016 at 7:00 pm.  

Page 7 of 33



1 | P a g e  

 

 
 

 

 

Superintendent’s Report to the Board of Directors 

 

December 14, 2016 

 

___________________________________________ 

  

 

1. Program for International Student Assessment (PISA) 

(The following comments are adapted from Measuring up: Canadian Results of the OECD PISA 

Study, Council of Ministers of Education, Canada 2016) 

 

The Program for International Student Assessment (PISA) is a triennial international survey 

which aims to evaluate education systems worldwide by testing the skills and knowledge of 

15-year-old students. In 2015 over half a million students, representing 28 million 15-year-

olds in 72 countries and economies, took the internationally agreed two-hour test. Students 

were assessed in science, mathematics, reading, collaborative problem solving, and financial 

literacy.  

  

In Canada, approximately 20,000 15-year-olds from about 900 schools participated across 

the ten provinces. The large Canadian sample was required to produce reliable estimates 

representative of each province and for both French- and English-language school systems in 

Nova Scotia, New Brunswick, Quebec, Ontario, Manitoba, Alberta, and British Columbia. 

PISA was administered in English and in French according to the respective school system.  

 

The 2015 PISA assessment was administered in schools during regular school hours in April 

and May 2015. The assessment was a two-hour computer-based test. Students also 

completed a 35-minute student background questionnaire providing information about 

themselves and their home, while school principals completed a 20-minute questionnaire 

about their schools.  

 

The results of the 2015 assessment in science, reading, and mathematics were published on 

December 6, 2016. Results of the collaborative problem-solving and financial literacy 

components will be released in 2017.  

 

Selected pages from the PISA 2015 Report, as prepared by the Council of Education 

Ministers, Canada (CMEC) are attached. The complete CMEC report can be accessed online 

at 

http://www.cmec.ca/Publications/Lists/Publications/Attachments/365/Book_PISA2015_EN_D

ec5.pdf. 

Page 8 of 33

http://www.cmec.ca/Publications/Lists/Publications/Attachments/365/Book_PISA2015_EN_Dec5.pdf
http://www.cmec.ca/Publications/Lists/Publications/Attachments/365/Book_PISA2015_EN_Dec5.pdf


2 | P a g e  

 

2. Modernization Update 

Work continues on Phase 1 of our school’s major modernization project. Following are 

some of the key progress points to date: 

 Demolition of the west portable classrooms is complete and the new modular 

classrooms have been put in place. 

 Demolition of the interior portions of the northeast sector of the core building is 

complete and construction has begun. Interior walls have been put in place and 

construction of mechanical, electrical, and HVAC components is underway. 

 During after-school and early evening hours, mechanical and electrical work 

continues in the corridors of the core building.  

 

In the weeks ahead, the following work will be undertaken: 

 Re-roofing of the core building, with the exception of the gymnasium. 

 Continuation of the mechanical, electrical, and HVAC work in Phase 1. 

 Boarding, taping, and painting in Phase 1 of core building. 

 Construction of link to and corridor/breakout area in new modular classrooms. 

 

In response to a request made at the November 23, 2016 Board meeting, information is 

attached regarding modifications and improvements that will be made, as part of the major 

modernization project, to the exterior of our school and to the grounds. 

 

Project site meetings are held every two weeks; the target date for completion of Phase 1 

remains February 6, 2017. 

 

3. Stakeholder Forum  

The second annual New Horizons Stakeholder Forum will be held from 6:30 – 9:15 p.m. on 

Wednesday, February 1, 2017. The Stakeholder Forum will bring together parents, students, 

and staff, as well as members of the Board, in a stimulating discussion about school 

strengths, weakness, opportunities, priorities, plans, and possible new initiatives. Results of 

this discussion will have a direct impact on the content of the next iteration of the Three-

Year Education Plan. This year's Stakeholder Forum will once again be facilitated by the 

Community Development Unit of Alberta Culture and Tourism. 

 

4. College of Alberta School Superintendents (CASS) 

The College of Alberta School Superintendents (CASS) is a collegial organization of school 

jurisdiction leaders. CASS “serves as the professional voice of system education leaders 

[and] provides leadership, expertise and advocacy to improve, promote and champion public 

education.”1 Provincial conferences are held in the fall and spring, with zone meetings held 

on four occasions each year. The most recent Zone 2/3 meeting, which includes the greater 

Edmonton region, was held at Bev Facey Community High School on December 2. 

Highlights of the meeting included the following: 

 Update on School Capital Projects – Tony Hodge, Director, Alberta Infrastructure 

 Update on Provincial Curriculum Initiative – Ellen Hambrook, Assistant Deputy 

Minister, Alberta Education 

 Report from the First Nations, Métis and Inuit Education Division – Sandra Skare, 

Manager, Alberta Education 

 

 

                                                
1 CASS Member Handbook 2014 

Page 9 of 33



3 | P a g e  

 

5. Looking Ahead  

a. Board Orientation Session 

 Wednesday, January 11, 2016, at 6:30 p.m. 

b. Board Meeting 

 Wednesday, January 11, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. 

c. The Association of Alberta Public Charter Schools 

 Friday and Saturday, January 20 & 21, 2017 – Red Deer 

d. Stakeholder Forum 

 Wednesday, February 1, 2017, at 6:15 p.m. 

e. Board Governance Seminar with Becky Kallal, at Suzuki Charter School 

 Thursday, February 2, 2017, at 5:30 p.m. 
 

 

 
 

Don Falk 

Superintendent – New Horizons Charter School 

Page 10 of 33



Measuring up: Canadian Results 
of the OECD PISA Study

Page 11 of 33



Figure 1.2

300 350 400 450 500 550 600

95% Confidence interval

Estimated average score

Singapore 556 (1.2)
Alberta 541 (4.0)

539 (4.3)
Japan 538 (3.0)

537 (4.7)
Estonia 534 (2.1)
Chinese Taipei 532 (2.7)
Finland 531 (2.4)
Macao-China 529 (1.1)
CANADA 528 (2.1)
Vietnam 525 (3.9)

524 (3.9)
Hong Kong-China 523 (2.5)
BSJG-China 518 (4.6)

517 (4.5)
Korea 516 (3.1)

515 (5.4)
New Zealand 513 (2.4)
Slovenia 513 (1.3)
Australia 510 (1.5)
United Kingdom 509 (2.6)
Germany 509 (2.7)
The Netherlands 509 (2.3)

506 (4.5)
506 (3.2)

Switzerland 506 (2.9)
Ireland 503 (2.4)
Belgium 502 (2.3)
Denmark 502 (2.4)
Poland 501 (2.5)
Portugal 501 (2.4)
M 499 (4.7)
Norway 498 (2.3)
United States 496 (3.2)

496 (3.1)
Austria 495 (2.4)
France 495 (2.1)
Sweden 493 (3.6)
Czech Republic 493 (2.3)
Spain 493 (2.1)
Latvia 490 (1.6)
Russian Federa on 487 (2.9)
Luxembourg 483 (1.1)
Italy 481 (2.5)
Hungary 477 (2.4)
Lithuania 475 (2.7)
Croa a 475 (2.5)
Iceland 473 (1.7)
Israel 467 (3.4)
Malta 465 (1.6)
Slovak Republic 461 (2.6)
Greece 455 (3.9)
Chile 447 (2.4)
Bulgaria 446 (4.4)
United Arab Emirates 437 (2.4)
Uruguay 435 (2.2)
Romania 435 (3.2)
Cyprus 433 (1.4)
Moldova 428 (2.0)
Albania 427 (3.3)
Turkey 425 (3.9)
Trinidad and Tobago 425 (1.4)
Thailand 421 (2.8)
Costa Rica 420 (2.1)
Qatar 418 (1.0)
Colombia 416 (2.4)
Mexico 416 (2.1)
Montenegro 411 (1.0)
Georgia 411 (2.4)
Jordan 409 (2.7)
Indonesia 403 (2.6)
Brazil 401 (2.3)
Peru 397 (2.4)
Lebanon 386 (3.4)
Tunisia 386 (2.1)
Republic of Macedonia 384 (1.2)
Kosovo 378 (1.7)
Algeria 376 (2.6)
Dominican Republic 332 (2.6)

Alberta

Note:Note:Note:

Page 12 of 33



Figure 2.1

: OECD countries appear in italics. The OECD average was 493, with a standard error of 0.5.

(see Appendix A for further details).

300 350 400 450 500 550 600

95% Confidence interval

Estimated average score

Bri sh Columbia 536 (5.6)
Singapore 535 (1.6)
Alberta 533 (5.2)
Quebec 532 (4.7)
Ontario 527 (4.4)
Hong Kong-China 527 (2.7)
CANADA 527 (2.3)
Finland 526 (2.5)
Ireland 521 (2.5)
Estonia 519 (2.2)
Korea 517 (3.5)
Nova Sco a 517 (4.9)
Japan 516 (3.2)
Prince Edward Island 515 (6.1)
Norway 513 (2.5)
New Zealand 509 (2.4)
Germany 509 (3.0)
Macao-China 509 (1.3)
Poland 506 (2.5)
New Brunswick 505 (5.2)
Slovenia 505 (1.5)
Newfoundland and Labrador 505 (3.5)
The Netherlands 503 (2.4)
Australia 503 (1.7)
Sweden 500 (3.5)
Denmark 500 (2.5)
France 499 (2.5)
Belgium 499 (2.4)
Manitoba 498 (5.0)
Portugal 498 (2.7)
United Kingdom 498 (2.8)
Chinese Taipei 497 (2.5)
United States 497 (3.4)
Saskatchewan 496 (3.6)
Spain 496 (2.4)
Russian Federa on 495 (3.1)
BSJG-China 494 (5.1)
Switzerland 492 (3.0)
Latvia 488 (1.8)
Czech Republic 487 (2.6)
Croa a 487 (2.7)

Austria 485 (2.8)
Italy 485 (2.7)
Iceland 482 (2.0)
Luxembourg 481 (1.4)
Israel 479 (3.8)
Lithuania 472 (2.7)
Hungary 470 (2.7)
Greece 467 (4.3)
Chile 459 (2.6)
Slovak Republic 453 (2.8)
Malta 447 (1.8)
Cyprus
Uruguay 437 (2.5)
Romania 434 (4.1)
United Arab Emirates 434 (2.9)
Bulgaria 432 (5.0)
Turkey 428 (4.0)
Costa Rica 427 (2.6)
Trinidad and Tobago 427 (1.5)
Montenegro 427 (1.6)
Colombia 425 (2.9)
Mexico 423 (2.6)
Moldova 416 (2.5)
Thailand 409 (3.3)
Jordan 408 (2.9)
Brazil 407 (2.8)
Albania 405 (4.1)
Qatar 402 (1.0)
Georgia 401 (3.0)
Peru 398 (2.9)
Indonesia 397 (2.9)
Tunisia 361 (3.1)
Dominican Republic 358 (3.1)
Republic of Macedonia 352 (1.4)
Algeria 350 (3.0)
Kosovo 347 (1.6)
Lebanon 347 (4.4)

487 (3.7)

Bri sh Columbia

Alberta
Quebec

Ontario

CANADA

Prince Edward Island

New Brunswick

Newfoundland and Labrador

Manitoba

Saskatchewan

Countries and provinces         Average     S.E. 

Above the Canadian average

At the Canadian average

Below the Canadian average

  443     (1.7)

Vietnam

Page 13 of 33



Figure 2.2

300 350 400 450 500 550 600

95% Confidence interval

Estimated average score

Countries and provinces       Average   S.E. 

Singapore 564 (1.5)
Hong Kong-China 548 (3.0)
Quebec 544 (4.8)
Macao-China 544 (1.1)
Chinese Taipei 542 (3.0)
Japan 532 (3.0)
BSJG-China 531 (4.9)
Korea 524 (3.7)
Bri sh Columbia 522 (5.0)
Switzerland 521 (2.9)
Estonia 520 (2.0)
CANADA 516 (2.3)
The Netherlands 512 (2.2)
Alberta 511 (4.7)
Denmark 511 (2.2)
Finland 511 (2.3)
Slovenia 510 (1.3)
Ontario 509 (4.2)
Belgium 507 (2.4)
Germany 506 (2.9)
Poland 504 (2.4)
Ireland 504 (2.1)
Norway 502 (2.2)
Prince Edward Island 499 (6.4)
Nova Sco a 497 (4.6)
Austria 497 (2.9)
New Zealand 495 (2.3)
Vietnam 495 (4.5)
Russian Federa on 494 (3.1)
Sweden 494 (3.2)
Australia 494 (1.6)
France 493 (2.1)
New Brunswick 493 (5.1)
United Kingdom 492 (2.5)
Czech Republic 492 (2.4)
Portugal 492 (2.5)
Italy 490 (2.8)
Manitoba 489 (4.2)
Iceland 488 (2.0)
Spain 486 (2.2)
Luxembourg 486 (1.3)
Newfoundland and Labrador 486 (3.2)
Saskatchewan 484 (2.9)
Latvia 482 (1.9)
Malta 479 (1.7)
Lithuania 478 (2.3)
Hungary 477 (2.5)
Slovak Republic 475 (2.7)
Israel 470 (3.6)
United States 470 (3.2)
Croa a 464 (2.8)
Greece 454 (3.8)
Romania 444 (3.8)
Bulgaria 441 (4.0)
Cyprus 437 (1.7)
United Arab Emirates 427 (2.4)
Chile 423 (2.5)
Turkey 420 (4.1)
Moldova 420 (2.5)
Uruguay 418 (2.5)
Montenegro 418 (1.5)
Trinidad and Tobago 417 (1.4)
Thailand 415 (3.0)
Albania 413 (3.4)
Mexico 408 (2.2)
Georgia 404 (2.8)
Qatar 402 (1.3)
Costa Rica 400 (2.5)
Lebanon 396 (3.7)
Colombia 390 (2.3)
Peru 387 (2.7)
Indonesia 386 (3.1)
Jordan 380 (2.7)
Brazil 377 (2.9)
Republic of Macedonia 371 (1.3)
Tunisia 367 (3.0)
Kosovo 362 (1.6)
Algeria 360 (3.0)
Dominican Republic 328 (2.7)

Quebec

Alberta

CANADA

Ontario

Prince Edward Island

New Brunswick

Manitoba

Newfoundland and Labrador 
Saskatchewan

Above the Canadian average

At the Canadian average

Below the Canadian average

: OECD countries appear in italics. The OECD average was 490, with a standard error of 0.4. 

(see Appendix A for further details).

Page 14 of 33



Page 15 of 33

cwoollard
Polygonal Line

cwoollard
Polygonal Line

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Polygonal Line

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Polygonal Line

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Polygonal Line

cwoollard
Polygonal Line

cwoollard
Callout
repair asphalt play area as required

cwoollard
Callout
new topsoil and grass

cwoollard
Callout
new concrete pad and walk

cwoollard
Callout
new entrance and concrete sidewalk

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Callout
replanted trees

cwoollard
Callout
new handrails

cwoollard
Callout
new handrails

cwoollard
Callout
new chain link enclosure for gas meter

cwoollard
Callout
trenching and repair for new services

cwoollard
Callout
trenching and repair for new parking plugs and light poles

cwoollard
Callout
new barrier-free parking stalls and curb ramp

cwoollard
Callout
new painted parking lines and light poles



Page 16 of 33

cwoollard
Callout
new modulars and link

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Callout
new clerestory windows

cwoollard
Callout
new chain link enclosure for gas meter

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Callout
new windows

cwoollard
Callout
new windows

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Callout
new modulars and link

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Callout
new windows

cwoollard
Callout
new exterior cladding and windows

cwoollard
Callout
new entrance

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Callout
new modulars and link

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Callout
new clerestory windows

cwoollard
Callout
new windows

cwoollard
Rectangle

cwoollard
Callout
new modulars and link beyond

cwoollard
Callout
new windows



Page 17 of 33



Page 18 of 33



New Horizons School Mail - TAAPCS January Meeting Information https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=70a2720b94&view=pt&sear... 

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

TAAPCS  January Meeting Inform ation 
 

 

Meredith Poole <meredith.poole@ffca-calgary.com> Thu, Dec 1, 2016  at 1:01 PM 

To: "Don Falk (New Horizons)" <dfalk@newhorizons.ab.ca>, 
 

Please find attached information on our January TAAPCS meetings, in both Word and  pdf format. 
 
 

Note that, as we agreed in October, these meetings will be held over a Friday/Saturday to afford more Directors the 

opportunity to attend. 

Hotel reservations are  required by December 20, and  attendance information is due  to me by January 6. 

 
You will see that I am requesting an attendance response on the Superintendents’ and  Directors’ meetings this time 

as well, if you would be kind enough to include that please. 

This information is very helpful in booking adequate space, and  meals where  required. Agendas for these meetings 

will be sent out at a later date. 
 
 

Thanks for your attention to this, and please accept my best wishes for a very Merry Christmas and  Happy New 

Year!! 
 
 

Meredith Poole 

 
Secretary 

 
 

#240,  688 Heritage Dr. SE 

Calgary, AB T2H 1M6 

meredith.poole@ffca-calgary.com 

Phone: 403-520-3206, ext. 8154 

Fax: 403-520-3209 
 
 

2 attachments 
 

TAAPCS  January 20, 21 2017 Meeting Information.docx 

16K 
 

TAAPCS  January 20, 21 2017 Meeting Information.pdf 

204K 

Page 19 of 33

mailto:meredith.poole@ffca-calgary.com
mailto:dfalk@newhorizons.ab.ca
mailto:meredith.poole@ffca-calgary.com
mailto:meredith.poole@ffca-calgary.com


TAAPCS JANUARY MEETINGS 
 
When:  Friday, January 20 and Saturday, January 21, 2017 (*note the change of days to accommodate attendance of more Directors) 
 
Where:  Sheraton Hotel (all meetings) 
                3310 – 50th Avenue 
                Red Deer, Alberta (call 403-346-2091 or 1-800-662-7197 to request TAAPCS reduced rate of $139/+tax) 
                NOTE: Reservations must be made by December 20 to take advantage of this rate. 
 
What:    Superintendents’ Meeting                                Directors’ Meeting                        Banquet   Regular Meeting 
               Marseille Room                                                    Marseille Room                              Palermo Savona  Palermo Savona 
               Friday, January 20                                    Friday, January 20                          Friday, January 20  Saturday, January 21  
               10:00 am – 2:00 pm (includes lunch)               3:00 pm – 4:00 pm                         6:00 pm cocktails  7:45 am breakfast 
                                                   6:45 pm dinner  8:30 am – 2:00 pm (includes lunch) 
                  
Who:      School Spotlight – Aurora Charter School; Entertainment – Calgary Arts Academy; Door Prizes – Calgary Girls’ School; Research Report - TBD 
                
RSVP:  To Meredith Poole meredith.poole@ffca-calgary.com by January 6, 2017  

(Please complete and return form below for all attendees from your school at all meetings.) 
  
Regards, Dianne 
 
Meeting Attendance and Meal Requirements 
                 Check all that apply (√) 

Name of Attendee(s) Position Superintendents’ 
Mtg. - Lunch 

Directors’ Mtg. 
(no meal) 

Friday  
Banquet 

Saturday 
Breakfast 

Saturday 
Lunch 

Dietary Restrictions? 
Please specify 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

 

Page 20 of 33

mailto:meredith.poole@ffca-calgary.com


 
 

Don Falk 

Superintendent 

Phone: 780-416-2353 

Email: dfalk@newhorizons.ca 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
December 10, 2016 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Don Falk – Superintendent  
 
Subject: Board Member Vacancy 
 
Background:  
The Board of Directors will have opportunity, at its meeting of December 14, 2016, to consider the 
Board member vacancy that was created due to a resignation. 
 
New Horizons Charter School Society Bylaw 6.1.6.4 states the following with respect to the replacement 
of a Director who has resigned from the Board: 

If there is a resignation, death, or removal of a Director, the Board may appoint a Member to fill 
a vacancy for the remainder of the term. Any appointment shall be made at the next meeting of 
the Board. Appointment shall be by majority vote. 

 
The Board is also advised of Bylaw 6.1.3.1, which, in the following statement, implies that the Board may 
choose not to fill a vacant position: The Board consists of a maximum seven Directors. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider whether or not to appoint a replacement for the 
position on the Board that has become vacant due to resignation. 
 

 
Don Falk – Superintendent 

Page 21 of 33



Page 22 of 33



Page 23 of 33



Page 24 of 33



 
 

Don Falk 

Superintendent 

Phone: 780-416-2353 

Email: dfalk@newhorizons.ca 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
December 10, 2016 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Don Falk – Superintendent  
 
Subject: Enrolment Report  
 
Background:  
Attached is the New Horizons School Enrolment Report as at September 30, 2016.  
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Enrolment Report be received as information. 
 

 
Don Falk – Superintendent 
 
Attachment (1) 

Page 25 of 33



 
 

 

Enrolment 

September 30, 2016 
 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Total Head Count 
274 

 

 

FTE Enrolment 
257.5 

 

 

Number of Families 
204 

 

 

 

 

Enrolment by Grade 
 

Kindergarten 34 
Grade 1 44 
Grade 2 44 
Grade 3 29 
Grade 4 31 
Grade 5 24 
Grade 6 24 
Grade 7 16 
Grade 8 16 
Grade 9 12 
Total 274 

 

 

Page 26 of 33



 

 

 

Enrolment by Community 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Enrolment History 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

New Horizons School - Enrolment

Head Count FTE Enrolment

Sherwood Park 192 
Edmonton 41 
Ardrossan 19 
Beaumont 8 
Fort Saskatchewan 8 
New Sarepta 2 
St. Albert 2 
Leduc 2 
Total 274 

Page 27 of 33



 

 

 

Enrolment: Recent History and Projected Growth 
 

Class/Grade 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 

Kindergarten 23 32 36 34 34 34 34 34 34 

Grade 1 23 22 42 44 44 44 44 44 44 

Grade 2 22 21 26 44 44 44 44 44 44 

Grade 3 23 23 22 29 44 44 44 44 44 

Grade 4 21 23 24 31 30 48 48 48 48 

Grade 5 23 20 24 24 31 30 48 48 48 

Grade 6 22 24 20 24 24 31 30 48 48 

Grade 7 18 19 20 16 21 21 28 27 44 

Grade 8 21 18 18 16 14 18 18 25 24 

Grade 9 14 18 18 12 14 12 15 15 22 

Total FTE Enrolment 198.5 204 232 257 283 309 336 360 383 

Total Head Count 210 220 250 274 300 326 353 377 400 

 

Page 28 of 33



 

Board Work Plan 2016-17 Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

Board of Directors – Work Plan for 2016-17 
 

September   Adopt Board Work Plan for 2016-17  
  Receive Counsellor’s Report for 2015-16 School Year  
  Set date for October Board meeting  
  Receive report on provincial achievement test results (closed meeting)  
  Set date for NHCS Society AGM  
    
    
October  Conduct SGM; Hold Board elections  
  Elect Board executive officers (must be within one week of SGM)  
  Select members for Board standing committees  
  Set dates for Board meetings (motion required)  
  Notify Service Alberta of change in executive officers  
  Sign Board Member Code of Conduct – Policy #101  
  Receive Accountability Pillar Results Report for October 2016  
  Attend TAAPCS Charter Board Directors/Regular Meeting #1  
  Receive enrolment report for September 30, 2016  
  Conduct initial orientation session for new Board members  
    
    
November  Conduct AGM of NHCS Society  
  Approve final Three-Year Education Plan 2016-17 to 2018-19  
  Approve revised budget for 2016-17  
  Approve Annual Education Results Report 2015-16  
  Approve Audited Financial Statement Year Ending Aug 31/16  
  Receive Report #1 from School Council  
    
    
    
December  Receive Quarterly Financial Report for Sep - Nov 2016  
  Receive Class Size Report for 2016-17  
    
    
    
January  Attend TAAPCS Charter Board Directors/Regular Meeting #2  
  Receive mid-year progress report on Three-Year Education Plan 2016-19  
  Stakeholder Forum – Gather input on possible Education Plan priorities  
  Prepare breakfast for school staff – Jan. 20  
    
    
February  Approve school calendar for 2017-18  
    
    

Page 29 of 33



 

Board Work Plan 2016-17 Page 2 of 2 

 
March  Receive Quarterly Financial Report for Dec 2016 – Feb 2017  
  Approve Three-Year Capital Plan for 2017-18 to 2019-20  
  Board Retreat – Identify priorities for upcoming Education Plan  
  Administer Board-developed Stakeholder Survey  
    
    
    
April  Provide provisional approval to Education Plan 2017-18 to 2019-20  
    
    
    
May  Attend TAAPCS Charter Board Directors/Regular Meeting #3  
  Approve Budget for 2017-18  
  Receive Accountability Pillar Results Report for May 2016  
  Receive Board-developed stakeholder survey results  
  Consider salary adjustment for support staff, senior administration  
  Receive report from FANHS  
    
    
    
June  Assess Board Work Plan progress for 2016-17  
  Receive Quarterly Financial Report for Mar – May 2017  

 
 Schedule SGM of NHCS Society (requires 21 days’ notice; must be on or 

before Oct 10) 
 

  Schedule September 2017 Board meeting  
  Set date for Board Housekeeping Retreat  
  Receive Report #2 from School Council  
    
    
    
Ongoing  Consider proposals for new or amended Board policies  
  Receive recommendations from Board committees  
    
    
    
Annually  Negotiate collective agreement with ATA (as needed)  
  Undertake Superintendent evaluation  
  Undertake Board evaluation  
    
As Needed  Meet with:   
  - County Council  
  - MLAs  
    

 

Page 30 of 33



Page 31 of 33



Page 32 of 33



Page 33 of 33


	01. Board Meeting Agenda Pkg - Cover Page
	02. Board Meeting Agenda 2016-12-14
	03. Draft - Board Minutes November 23, 2016 Rev 1
	05. 2016-12-10 Superintendent's Report
	06. PISA 2015 Results Selected Pages
	PISA 2015 CMEC Cover
	PISA 2015 Science Rankings
	PISA 2015 Reading Rankings
	PISA 2015 Math Rankings

	07. Site and Exterior Views
	08. 2016-12-01 MPoole to TAAPCS Members re Jan Mtg
	09. TAAPCS January 20, 21 2017 Meeting Information
	10. 2016-12-10 DFalk to Board re Vacancy (1)
	11. Quarterly Financial Report 2016-11-30
	12. 2016-12-10 DFalk to Board re Enrolment Report
	13. Enrolment Report 2016-09-30
	14. Board Work Plan 2016-17 APPROVED UPDATED 2016-11-24
	15. 2016-11-25 JWeiss to DEggen re Enrolment Cap



